
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
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A:LANI A FEDERAL CENrER 

61 FORSYTH STREET 

ATL.A.NTA, GEORGIA J0303·1,l96Q 

£EB 2 8 2.012. 

C~RTIFlED MAIL 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Mr. Craig: N. Thatcher 
Thatcher Chemical of Florida. Inc. 
245 Hazon Road 
Deland, Florida 32720 

RE: 	 Thutcher Chemical of Florida, Inc. 
Consent Agreement and Final Order 
Docket ~o, CERCLA-04-2012-2033(b) 

[kar Mr, Thatcher; 

Enclosed please find an executed copy of the Consent Agreement alld Final Order (CAFO) that resolves: 
the Comprehensive Environmental Response. Compensation, und Liability Act matter (Docket No. 
CERCLA-04-2012-2033(b)) involving Thatcher Chemical of Florida. Inc, The CAPO was filed with Ihe 
Regional Hearing Clerk, as required by 40 C,r.R. Part 22 and nec3me effective on the date of the filing. 

Also enclosed, please find a copy ofthe "Notice of Securities and Exchange Commission Registrants' 
Duty to Disclose Environmental Legal Proceedings." This document puts you nn notice of your 
potential duty to disclose to the Security llnd Exchange Commls.-',ion any environmental entorcement 
actions taken by the Environmental Protection Agency. Ifyou have any questions with regards to the 
SEC's environmental disclosure requirements, you may refer to the contact phone numher at the bottom 
of the SEC Notice. 

When you send in the payment for the penalty. please ensure that the docket nwnber and name of the 
CAFO (Docket ]>in, CERCL"-04-2012-2033(b). Thatcher Chemical of florida, Inc,) are on the lace of 
the check, as required by the top ofpage 4 oflhc CAFO, 

If you have any questiorus. pteao;;e call Mr. Brycc Covington at (404) 562-9l92. 
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION 4 


IN THE YlATTER OF: ) 
el) :r .,., ....Thatcher Chemical ofF1orida, Inc. ) Docket Numher: CERCLA-04-20I2-2033~ 
~ 

) .:;::: 1'T1 ~'" 
N"" ",,'"

Respondent. ) :z: ,.,,;:;l 
C>­) '" '" -<
0",:::0: " -Xc 

.t:".. 
~;ONSENT AGRE!2L"rnNl' AND FINAL ORDER, "" 

CO 

1. Na~re ofthe Action 

1. This is a civil penalty proceeding pUf5uant to Section 109 of the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA). as amended. 42 U.S.C 
§ 9609 and pursuant to the Consolidated Rules of Ptactice Governing Administrative Assessment 
of Civil Penalties, and the RevocationfTennination or Suspension of Pennits (Consolidated 
Rules), codified at 40 C.P.R. Part 22. Complainant is the Director uftbe Air, Pesticides and 
Taxies Management Division. Region 4, United States Environmental Prot;;,'Ction Agency (EPA). 
Respondent is Thatcher Chemical ofFlorida, Inc, 

2, The authority to take action under Se<.1ion 109 ofCERCLA. 42 U.S.C. § 9609 is 
vested in the Administrator of EPA. The Adminlstrator of EPA has delegated this authority 
under CERCLA to the Regional Administrators by EPA Delegation 14·31 dated May II, 1994. 
The Regional Administrator, Region 4~ has redelegated to the Director, Air, Pesticides and 
TQxics M.anagement Divit:ion, the authority under CERCLA hy EPA Region 4 Deiegation 14-31 
dated March 8, 1999. and updated August 6. 2004. Pursuant to these delegations, the Director of 
the Air, Pesticides and ToxiCl;i. Management Division has the authority to commence an 
enforcement action as the Complainant in this matter. 

3. Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlemt.'Ut 
pursuant to 40 C.P.R § 22.18(b) and desire to resolve this matter and settle the allegations 
described herein without a formal hearing. Therefore, without the taking of any evidence or 
testimony, the making of any argument, or the adjudication of any issue in this matter, and in 
accordance with 40 c'F.R. §§ 22. 13tb) and 22. 18(b), this Consent Agreement and Final Order 
(CAFO) will simultanoously commence and conclude this matter. 

4. 
Florida. 

Respondent, Thatcher Chemical of florida, Inc.~ does business in the State of 

5, 
§ 9601(21). 

Respondent is a lIperson" as dctined in Section 101(21) ofCERCLA. 42 U.S.C. 



6. Respondent he.. a "facility"' as that tenn is defined by Section 101(9) of CERCLA, 
42 U.S.c. § 9601(9). 

7. Respondent's facility is located at 245 Hazen Road, Deland, Florida. 

8. Respondent is an "owner or operator" of the facility as that term 1$1 defined by 
Section 101(20)(A) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C, § 9601(20)(A). 

1Il. EPA', Allegation ofViolatio!l 

9. Section 102(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9602(a), required the Administrator of 
EPA to publish a list of substances designated as hazardous substances which, when relei;\$cd 
into the environment, may present substantial danger to public health or welfare or the 
environment and to promulgate regulations establishing the quantity ofany hazardous substance 
the release of which was required to he reported under Section \03(0) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. 
§ 9603(a). EPA has published and amended such a list, including the corresponding reportable 
quantities (RQ) for those substances. This list which is codified at 40 C.F.R Part 302, wns 
initially pUblished on April 4, 1985 (50 Fed. Reg. 13474) and is periodically amended. 

10. Section 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), and the regulations found at 
40 e,ER § 302.6. require a person in charge ofa facility or vessel, as soon as he or she has 
knowledge of a release of a h~ous substance from such facility or vessel in an amount equal 
to, or greater than the RQ, to immedialely notify the National Response Center (NRC). 

11. Respondent was in charge of the facility during the relevant period described 
below. 

12. ferrous sulfate is a "hazardous substance" as that tenn is defined by Section 
101(14) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9601(14), wilh "nRQ of 1,000 pounds, as specified in 40 
C.F.R. § 302.4. 

13. On January 23, 2011, Respondent had a release offcrrous sulfate above the RQ at 
the facility. 

14. EPA alleges that Respondent violated the notification requirements ofSection 
103(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(.), by failing to immediately nolify the NRC as soon as 
Respondent had knowledge of the release of ferrous sulfate in an amount equal to or greater than 
its RQ at Respondent~s facility and is therefore l:iubject to the assessment ofpenalties under 
Section 109 of CERCLA, 42 U.s.C. § 9609. 

IS. Pursuantto Section 109 ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609, and 40 C.P.R. Part 19, 
EPA may assess a penalty not to exceed $37,500 for each violation ofScction 103(a) of 
CERCLA, 42 t:.S.C. § 9603(a), that olX:urred on or after January 12,2009. Eooh day a violation 
of Section 103 continues constitutes a separate violation. Civil penalties under Section 109 of 
CERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9609, may be assessed by an Administr.tive Order. 
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IV, Consent Agreement 

16. For the purposes of this CAFO. Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations 
set out above but neither admits nor denies the factual allegations set out above. 

17. Respondent waives any right to contest the allegations and its right to appeal the 
proposed final OrdL"f accompanying thl;! Consent Agreement. 

18, Respondent consents to the assessment of and agrees to pay the civil penalty as 
set forth in this CAFO. 

19. Respondent agrees to complete the Supplemental Environmental Project (SEP) set 
furth in this CAFO. 

20. Respondent certifies that as of the date of its execution of this CAFO. it is in 
compliance with all relevant requirements of CERCLA. 

21. Compliance with the CAFO shall resolve the al1egations ofvioiatiolls contained 
herein. This CAFO shall not othenvise affect any liabillty of Respol1dcnt to [hI;! United States 
other than as expressed herein. Neither EPA m.lf Complainant waives any right to bring an 
enforcement action against Respondent for violation of any federal or state statutt; regulation or 
permit. to initiate an action for imminent and substantial t>'ndangennent. or to pursue crIminal 
enforcement. 

22. Complu1nant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution of this 
CAFO. The parties agree that the settlement ofthls matter is in the public interest and that this 
CAFO is consistent with the applicable rcquiram..'Ilts of CERCLA. 

V. Final Order 

23. Respondent shall pay a civil penalty of ONE THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED 
FORTY-SIX DOLLARS ($1,446) lor the CERCLA violation which shall be paid within thirty 
(30) days afthe effective date of this CAFO. 

24. Respondent shall pay the CERCLA ci;~1 penalty by furwarding a cashier's or 
certified check, payable to "EPA Hazardous Substance Superfund" to one of the following 
addresses: 

BY MAlL BY OVERNIGlIT 
US Environmental U.s. Bank 
Protection Agency Government Lockhox 979076 US 
Superfund Payments EPA Superfund Payments 
Cincinnati Finance Center 100 Convention Plaza 
P.O. Box 979076 SL-MO-C2-GL 
SI. Louis, MO 63197-9000 SI. Louis,M063101 


(314)418-1028 
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The check shall reference on its face the name and the Docket Number of the CAFO, 

25. At the time ofpaynumt, Respondent shaH send a separate copy of the check, and a 
written ~tatement that payment has been made in accordance with this CAFO, to the following 
persons at the following addresses: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U,S, EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S,W, 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

Bryce Covington 
U.s, EPA, Region 4 
Air~ Pesticides & Toxics Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street, S,W, 
Atlanta. GA 30303 

Saundi W 1150Il 

Otlicc of Environmenta1 Accountability 
U,S, EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W, 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

26, For the purposes of state and federal income taxes. Respondent shall not be 
cntitloo7 and agrees not to attempt~ to claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made 
pursuant to this CAEO, Aoy attempt by Respondent 10 dcduc1 any such payments shall 
constitute a violation of this CAFO 

VI. Supplemental EnYironmental Proiect 

27. Respondent shall undertake and complete, in accordance with the approved SEP in tllis 
matter. the following Pollution Reduction project within 60 days of the effective date of this 
CAFO, Thatch,,, Chemical ofFlorida, Inc" sh.ll expend not less than SIX THOCSAND EIGHT 
HUNDRED NJNETY-SIX DOLLARS ($6,896) for the purchase and installation of the 
following: 

2 - 2 inch Air pumps ($5,976) 

2 - 2 inch by 20 foot Type C and E Kamlocks All Chemical Hoses ($470); and 

I - Drain valve removal from ferrie sulfate berm and concrete patch application ($450). 


Respondent acknowledges that the SEP expenditure exceeds the minimum required SEP cost 
($5,424), 

28, Respondent agrees to the following language concerning the SEP: 

"Respondent certifies that it is not a party to any open federal financial a.>;.~istancc 
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transaction that is funding or could be used to fund the same activity as the SEP. 
Respondent further certifies that, to the best of its knowledge and belief after reasonable 
inquiry~ there is no such open feder..u fmancia1 transaction that is funding or could be 
used to fund the same activity as the SEP, nor hID) the same activity been described in an 
unsuccessful federal fll1ancial assistance transaction proposaJ submitted to EPA within 
two years of the date of this settlement (unless the project was barred from funding as 
statutorily 1neligible). For the purposes of this certification. the term '''open federal 
financial assistance transaction" refers to a grant. cooperative agreement; loan, 
federally-guaranteed loan guar.mtee or other mechanism for providing federal financial 
assistance whose financtal perfonnancc period has not yet expired." 

29. Respondent agrees that EPA may conduct an inspection at any time in order to 
confirm that the SEP is being undertaken in conformity with the representations made herein. 

30, No later than thirty (30) calendar days after the completion of the project, 
Respondent shall submit to EPA a SEP Completion Report, The Report shall be sent to the 
EPCRA Enforcement Section, to the attention of Bryce Covington at the address provided above. 
The Report shall include the following: 

(a) an affidavit from an authorized company official, attesting that the SEP has been 
completed or explaining i.n detail any failure to- complete it; and 

(0) copies of appropriate documentatiun. including invoices and receipts, showing a total 
expendirure of SIX THOUSAl'ID EIGlIT HUNDRED NlNETY- SIX DOLLARS 
($6.896), or greater, was spent to purchase and insta.ll two (2) 2 inch Air pumps, two (2) 2 
incl1 by 20 foot Type C and E Kamlocks All Chemical Hoses, and the removal ""d patch 
of one (I) drain valve from the ferric sulfate berm as described in panlgraph 27. 

Upon request, Respondent sball send EPA any additional documentation requested by EPA. 

31. For Federal Income Tax purposes, Respondent agrees that it will neither capitalize 
into inventory or basis nor deduct any oosts or expenditures incurred in perfonning the SEP. 

32. Respondent certifies that, as of the date this CAFO lS signed, it is not required to 
pe:rtorm any part ofthe SEP by any federal. state or J<.K:allaw, regulation. pennit or order~ or by 
any agreement or grant. Respondent further certifies that, as of this date, it ha."l not received and 
is not negotiating to receive., credit for any part of the SEP in any other enforcement action of 
any kind, 

33. Any public statement, oral or written, by Respondent making any reterence to the 
SEP shall include the following language: 

''This project was undertaken in connection with the settlement of an enforcement action 
taken by the U.S. Envlronrnental Protection Agency ror violations of Section 103 ofthe 
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, 42 u.S,C. 
§ 9603, 
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32, If Respondent fails to timely and fully complete any part of the SEP, including 
failure to spend the minimum amount of FIVE THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED TWENTY, 
FOUR ($5,424), Respondent sball pay to the United States a lrtipulated penalty ofUle difference 
between $5,424 (SEP dollar amount) and the ""tual SEP expenditure, 

33. If Respondent faits to timely submit a SEP Completion Report as required by this 
CAFO, Respondent shall pay to the United States a stipulated penalty oiSlO!) for each calendar 
day the report is late, 

34, Respondent shall pay any stipulated penalties that accrue under this CAFO within 
15 calendar days of the receipt by Respondent of written demand from EPA lor such penalties. 
Such penalties shall be paid ill accordance with the procedures set forth above for the payment of 
the civil penalty. 

35. Pursuant to 31 U,S.C S3717, EPA is entitled to assess interest and penalties on 
debts owed to the Gnited States and a charge to cover the cost ofprocessing and handling a 
delinquent claim. Interest will therefore begin to accrue on the civil penalty from the effective 
date of this CAFO if the penalty is lIot l'aid by the dale required, Interest will be assessed at the 
ratc established by the SecTetary ofTreasury pursuant to 31 l),S,c' § 3717, A charge will be 
assessed to cover the costs ofdebt coJ}C\,..vtion, including processing and handling costs and 
attorney fees. In addition. a penalty charge will be assessed on any portion of the debt that 
remains delinquent more than ninety (90) days ailer payment is due. 

36. Complainant and Respondent shaH bear their own costs and attorney fees in this 
matter. 

37, This CAFO shalt be binding upon the Respondent, its successors, and assigns. 

38. The fol1mving individual is authorized to receive service for EPA in this 
proceeding: 

Caron B. Falroner 
U,8, EPA, Region 4 
Air Pesticides & Toxics Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street, g,W, 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
(404) 562-8451 

39. Each undersigned representative of the parties to this CAFO cert1fies that he or 
,he is fully authorized by the party represented to enter into this CAFO and Icgally bind that 
party to it. 
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By: "'-'-"'/-'::'9 

VI. EtIcctive D£ite 

40. The effective date of this CAFO shall be the date on which tile CAFO is filed with 
the Regional Hearing Clerk. 

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO: 

19iilfttlfe) Date: ;;t/ll/O<O I'd-. 
Name: li4~.!@L1J1.«~;it: ,,;(:. ____ (fyped or Printed) 

Title: .--1~'£c21k!Je:c~tt· ______ (Typed or Printed) 

U.s. Environmental Protection Agency 

By: -!,....ff!:~~~el.!-.uutt¥.r_1r;q;.u_- Date:. D2.· DB· toll. 
S ly H, Banister 
Director 
Air, Pesticides & Toxics 

Management Division 

APPROVED AND SO ORDERED this _d" ~f1, day of ddr"'ff-,2012. 

k~tS, j,--A"."&
Susan B, Schub 
Regional Judicial Officer 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVlCE 

I hereby certify that I have thiS! day served a true and correct wpy ofthe foregoing 

Consent Agreement and Final Order, In the Matter of Thatcher ChemiC<!tQfFlorida. Inc.. 

Docket Number: CERCLA 04-2012-2.Q:lMll), on the parties listed below in the manner 

indicated: 

Caron B. Falconer (Via EPA's internal mail) 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

Robert Caplan (Via EPA's internal mail) 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
Offiw of Environmental Accountability 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

Mr. Craig N. Thatcher (Certified Mail- Return Receipt Requested) 
Thatcher Chemical ofFIorida, Inc. 
245 Hazen Road 
Deland, FL 32720 

Date: ~~d,Z -J (J 
Patncia A. B lock, Regional Hearing 
United States Environmental 
Protection Agency, Region 4 
Atlanta Federal Center 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
(404) 562-9511 
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